
 1 

 

DRAFT COPY - SUBJECT TO COMMITTEE APPROVAL  
 

BOARD: TAZEWELL COUNTY 
 

COMMITTEE: LAND USE  
 

DATE/TIME: Tuesday, July 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
 

PRESENT: Chairman Terry Hillegonds, Monica Connett, K. Russell Crawford, 
Rosemary Palmer, John Redlingshafer, Andrew Rinehart, Greg Sinn and 
Sue Sundell 

 

ABSENT: None 
 

STAFF PRESENT: Kristal Deininger, Community Development Administrator; Kyle Smith, 
Land Use Planner; James Newman, ZBA Chairman; Matt Drake, Assistant 
States Attorney  

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Larry Mayberry, Cincinnati Township Supervisor; Ronald Hawkins, 
Cincinnati Township Road Commissioner; Robert Riffle; Jack Goetze 

           

CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Hillegonds called the meeting to Order at 5:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES:   Moved by Palmer, seconded by Sundell, to approve the minutes of the 

June 11, 2013 Land Use Meeting.  On voice vote, motion declared 

carried.  
 

CASES: 

Case No. 13-21-Z 
LU-13-06, Alice Guth  The petition of Alice Guth for a Map Amendment to the Official 

Washington Township Zoning Map of Tazewell County to change the 
zoning classification of property from an A-1 Agriculture Preservation 
District to a R-R Rural Residential Zoning District. 

 
    Moved by Rinehart, seconded by Redlingshafer, to recommend approval 

of LU-13-06, Case No. 13-21-Z, to the Tazewell County Board.  On voice  

    vote, motion declared carried. 

 

COMM DEVP ADMIN: 
NEW BUSINESS:   

 
911 Addressing Display 
Ordinance Update  Administrator Deininger stated flyers were mailed to nearly 10,000 

County residents on June 14, 2013.  Ms. Deininger said her office has 
fielded approximately 175 phone calls since the mailing.  Ms. Deininger 
added most were seeking clarification on questions, however a few were 
upset.  Ms. Deininger stated her office had a list of various 
entities/vendors that were supplying reflective signs. 

 
Cincinnati Township  Ron Hawkins, Cincinnati Township Road Commissioner appeared to 

address the Committee.  Mr. Hawkins stated he had approached Kristal 
regarding assistance financially in preparing and distributing flyers to 
Cincinnati Township residents regarding the Township’s ability to provide 
911 addressing signs for a reduced fee.  Mr. Hawkins provided the 



 2 

Committee with a proposed flyer and said there were approximately 1,069 
residents to distribute to Cincinnati Township.  Mr. Hawkins said 
assistance with labels, printing and possibly using the Counties USPS 
mailing Permit is what the Township was requesting. 

 
    Administrator Deininger stated there have been no complaints made to her 

office regarding monetary difficulties due to complying with the 
Ordinance.  Ms. Deininger said she felt the intention of the Township was 
a good idea however she was concerned another flyer being sent to 
residents causing confusion.  Ms. Deininger added Cincinnati Township’s 
name was on the list being given to those persons requesting signs.  Ms. 
Deininger stated by the time a flyer could be generated and distributed to 
the residents in Cincinnati Township, the posting deadline will have 
passed, as well, most will hopefully already have complied. 

 
    Mr. Crawford stated the County print shop was very efficient, however, if 

the County helped one Township with printing and distribution of 
literature, they could be subjected to helping all 19 Townships.  Mr. 
Crawford said he was not opposed to helping, however, he would like to 
see some numbers related to the cost of this prior to rendering a decision. 

 
    Larry Mayberry, Cincinnati Township Supervisor appeared to address the 

Committee.  Mr. Mayberry stated he understood the concerns of the 
Committee, but wanted to make a cost effective way for Cincinnati 
residents to comply with the Ordinance. 

 
    Following  all discussion, moved by Crawford, seconded by Palmer, to 

authorize Kristal to conduct a fact finding on the matter with regards to 

cost or other alternatives. On voice vote, motion declared carried. 
 
Building Code Fees  
and Staffing Update  Administrator Deininger presented the Committee with a spreadsheet 

showing an overview of actual and potential fees based upon 2012 Permits 
issued.  Ms. Deininger stated once the Building Code were to be 
implemented, there would be anticipated shock from residents based on 
the increase of the fees.  Ms. Deininger said if staffing were added to her 
budget due to the building code, a projected $80,000 would be added, 
however, with the proposed fee increase a projected $92,000 of revenue 
could be obtained.  Ms. Deininger added these numbers were not part of 
any fee study being conducted by the County.  Ms. Deininger stated she 
did check with a company that offered services for outsourcing staffing 
and enforcement of a Building Code and received a proposed cost of 
$195,000 to do so.  Ms. Deininger reminded the Committee that even with 
the proposed fee increase, Tazewell County was still in a median range 
compared to other area municipalities and counties. 

 
    Mr. Crawford stated the County has recognized that they have been giving 

services away and not covering their costs of operation.  Mr. Crawford 
said raising fees should not be viewed as another way to raise taxes but 
rather, raising fees was an incentive in being responsible and as a way to 
hold the line on raising taxes. 

 



 3 

    Mr. Sinn stated County offices needed to be self supportive, however he 
did not want price gouge reputable contractors and cause them to build 
elsewhere. 

 
    Chairman Hillegonds stated that from his past experience with Building 

Code adoption, the reputable contractors are in agreement with building 
code enforcement.  Mr. Hillegonds said code enforcement helps stop the 
reputable contractors from competing with other contracts that are not 
following the code, thereby undercutting contractor fees.  Mr. Hillegonds 
added this building code adoption should also be viewed as quality control 
and definitely as a means to provide safety to Tazewell County residents. 

 
    This item was for discussion purposes only.  No action was taken. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS: Mr. Crawford informed the Committee the Economic Development 
Committee would be hosting their 4th Milestone Event on July 30, 2013 
from 5-7  at the Gateway Building in Peoria.  Mr. Crawford invited all 
members and encouraged them to bring guests.  

 

STAFF REPORT:  Administrator Deininger presented the Committee a Staff Report detailing 
revenues, expenses and other office related activity over the last month 
and year. 

 

BILLS:   Moved by Sundell, seconded by Connett, to approve the bills for the 
Community Development Department as submitted. On voice vote, 

motion declared carried. 

    

 

NEXT MEETING: The next meeting of the Land Use Committee will be held on Tuesday, 

August 13, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. in the 3rd Floor Jury Meeting Room of the 
McKenzie Building. 

 

RECESS: There being no further business, the meeting recessed at 5:47 p.m. 
   

   Kristal Deininger, Secretary 
 
   Transcribed by Melissa A. Kreiter 
   Administrative Assistant  


